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AGENDA
PORTSMOUTH WETLANDS BOARD
PUBLIC HEARING
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2021, 3:30 P.M.
6th FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
CITY HALL, 801 CRAWFORD STREET
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 4, 2020
4. PUBLIC HEARING ITEM:
VMRC#21-1370: PER Properties, Inc. requests a wetlands permit to construct a loading
facility for ocean-going vessels, which requires the construction of a sheet pile bulkhead with
backfill, commercial pier/wharf, and dredging at 3999 Veneer Road. The subject project is
located along the Southern Branch of the Elizabeth River. The Wetlands Board issued a
permit for this project, but the permit expired October 16, 2018.
5. NEW BUSINESS
-

Nomination and Voting on Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson

6. ADJOURNMENT

801 Crawford Street, Portsmouth, Virginia 23704
Phone: (757) 393-8836 • Fax: (757) 393-5223

STAFF REPORT
(VMRC#21‐1370)

APPLICATION: VMRC#21-1370
ADDRESS: 3999 Veneer Road
APPLICANT: PER Properties, Inc.
AGENT: John Paul Woodley, Jr., Advantus Strategies

3999
Veneer
Road

The project agent with Advantus Strategies will provide a PowerPoint presentation during the meeting.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
VMRC#21-1370: PER Properties, Inc. requests a wetlands permit to construct a loading facility for oceangoing vessels, which requires the construction of a sheet pile bulkhead with backfill, commercial pier/wharf,
and dredging at 3999 Veneer Road. The subject project is located along the Southern Branch of the Elizabeth
River.


The wetlands permit issued for the bulkhead with backfill expired October 16, 2018 and must be
reviewed and reinstated by the Wetlands Board.



The applicant will be obtaining permits from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality, and the Virginia Marine Resources Commission, as well, to permit the
remaining portions of the project (wharf/commercial pier and dredging).



According to correspondence from PER Properties, Inc. dated June 14, 2021, the issued environmental
permits expired due to a delay awaiting the completion of work on the adjacent Atlantic Wood Products
Superfund Site, which was completed in 2020.
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In the interim, PER Properties, Inc. provided an updated proposal that decreases environmental impacts
and includes the following (NOT in the jurisdiction of the Wetlands Board):
o Redesign of rail access to the site
o Redesign of the proposed wharf/commercial pier to construct it on pilings instead of constructing
it on subaqueous fill



The portion of the proposal in the Wetlands Board’s jurisdiction (bulkhead with associated backfill) has
been amended to move the bulkhead wall closer to the shoreline, which reduced the amount of backfill
and corresponding environmental impact. The non-vegetated wetland impact has been reduced from
14,504 square feet to 13,809 square feet.



The original proposal included an on-site 7,281 square foot tidal wetland mitigation area, which
compensated for the environmental impacts for the entire project (bulkhead with backfill, commercial
pier/wharf, and subaqueous dredging). This is reflected in the original Wetlands Board permit dated
June 15, 2012 – ATTACHED.



An amended proposal was presented to the Board, which included a 0.6 acre oyster reef that
compensated for the project’s environmental impacts. The originally proposed on-site tidal wetland
mitigation area was eliminated. This is reflected in the updated Wetlands Board permit dated October 16,
2013 – ATTACHED.



The approved oyster reef has been fully established. The applicant has provided two (2) oyster reef
monitoring reports dated April 17, 2019 and August 12, 2021- ATTACHED.
AMC ANALYSIS (Wetland Board’s Jurisdiction)

Avoidance – The original proposal from 2013 provided for 1,300+ linear foot bulkhead, including return walls.
The bulkhead has been relocated closer to the shoreline of 3999 Veneer Road. The redesigned bulkhead wall
avoids 695 square feet of non-vegetated wetlands impacts.
Minimization – Though the proposal does not provide significant amendments to the Board’s jurisdiction, the
applicant has provided minimized impacts environmental impacts for the overall project.
Compensation – The established oyster reef approved in 2013, which serves as compensatory mitigation for
the project, will be maintained and monitored. The maintenance and monitoring of the oyster reef has been
made a proposed condition of the permit, should the Board choose to approve the applicant’s request.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Planning Staff recommends the APPROVAL of the applicant’s request for the reinstatement of a Wetlands
Permit for a Bulkhead and Associated Backfill with the following conditions:
PROPOSED PERMIT CONDITIONS


Staff recommends the APPROVAL of the applicant’s request with the following conditions:
1. The permit shall expire ten (10) years after its issuance – September 11, 2031.
2. The project shall comply with the plans approved by the Portsmouth Wetlands Board, which
includes the use of clean fill material as the backfill for the proposed sheet pile bulkhead.
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3. The applicant shall contact the City of Portsmouth’s Zoning Administrator at (757) 393-8836 to
obtain the required Zoning Compliance Permit.
4. The established oyster reef that provides mitigation for the project shall be appropriately maintained
and monitored by the applicant.
5. The project shall be constructed in accordance with the State of Virginia Erosion and Sediment
Control Manual standards including the use of an appropriate erosion and sediment control barrier
during construction.
6. A duly authorized agent of the Wetlands Board shall have the right to enter upon the premises, at a
reasonable time, for the purpose of inspecting the work being done pursuant to this permit.
7. The permittee shall, to the greatest extent practicable, minimize the adverse effects of the project
upon adjacent properties and wetlands and upon natural resources of the Commonwealth.
8. The permit shall be retained with the property records and transferred with the future sale of the
property.
9. The permittee shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the
conduct of the project. The granting of this permit shall not relieve the permittee of the responsibility
of obtaining any and all other permits or authority required for the project.
10. This permit may be revoked at any time by the Board upon the failure of the permittee to comply
with any of the terms and conditions listed herein.
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(Meeting called to order at 3:43 p.m.)
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay. Good afternoon,
ladies and gentlemen. I would like to welcome you all
to this very important meeting today, November the 4th,
2020, being held in the Microsoft Teams platform via
video conference. Please note this meeting will be
recorded and feature public comment. We ask that board
members mute your microphones when you are not speaking
and to verbally identify yourself prior to making
comments. Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Could I get slide 2?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. For the record,
this is Stacy Porter, senior planner for the Portsmouth
Planning Department. I will now confirm that all
members of the Wetlands Board are present and can hear
me by calling the role.
Board members, when I call your name,
please reply with a verbal response.
Donald Smith.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Here.
MS. PORTER: Jennifer Monument.
MS. MONUMENT: Here.
MS. PORTER: Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: (No response)
MS. PORTER: Douglas Union.
MR. UNION: Here.
MS. PORTER: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: Here.
MS. PORTER: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: Here.
MS. PORTER: All right. Five members of
the Wetlands Board are present.
This public meeting of the Wetlands Board
is being conducted remotely consistent with Governor
Northam's March 12, 2020, executive order and city
council ordinance 2020-102 due to the current state of
emergency in the Commonwealth given the outbreak of
COVID-19.
A quorum of the board is not physically
present in the meeting location, but members have
joined remotely. Further, all members of public bodies
are allowed and encouraged to participate remotely.
The order, which you can find posted on
the city's planning department web page with agenda
materials for this meeting, allows public bodies to
meet entirely remotely so long as reasonable public
access is afforded so that the public can follow along
with the deliberations of the meeting.
Ensuring public access does not ensure
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public participation unless such participation is
required by law.
This meeting will be recorded and feature
public comment. Even if members of the public do not
provide comment, participants are advised that people
may be listening who do not provide comment, and those
persons are not required to identify themselves.
For this meeting, the Wetlands Board is
convened by video conference via the Microsoft Teams
application as posted on the City's website identifying
how the public may join.
And we can go to slide 3.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Board members, before
you are the minutes of the August 5th, 2020, public
hearing. Do any board members have any corrections or
changes to the minutes? If so, please state your name
before stating the changes.
If there aren't any changes, we are in
need of a motion to approve the minutes. Could I get a
motion and a second? And board members, please, before
making a motion, identify yourself.
MS. MONUMENT: This is Jennifer Monument.
I make a motion to approve the minutes of the
August 5th meeting.
MR. GOOLD: This is Patrick Goold. I
second.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
I would like to make a correction. We've heard Patrick
Goold on the line, so we do have six members present
today.
We have a motion and a second to approve
the minutes from the August 5th, 2020, public hearing.
Board members, as I call your name,
please reply with a verbal response vote.
Donald Smith.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Approve.
MS. PORTER: Jennifer Monument.
MS. MONUMENT: Approve.
MS. PORTER: Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: Approve.
MS. PORTER: Douglas Union.
MR. UNION: Approve.
MS. PORTER: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: Approve.
MS. PORTER: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: Approve.
MS. PORTER: The minutes have been
approved by a vote of six to zero.
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If I could have the next

slide.
Our public hearing item today is VMRC
20-0699. The Norfolk Naval Shipyard requests a
wetlands permit for fence repair and shoreline
stabilization at the St. Juliens Creek Annex. The
property is located along the middle branch of the
Elizabeth River.
And the project agent will present the
application at this time, if we could unshare this
particular presentation and share theirs. And I thank
in advance the project agent for stating your name and
address for the record, and just know at the conclusion
of your presentation the chairman will provide an
opportunity for each board member to ask questions.
And you may proceed whenever you're
ready. And the presentation is on the screen for the
board members, and you feel free just to let us know
when you'd like to go to the next slide.
Again, if you could state your full name
and address for the record.
MS. MONUMENT: This is Jennifer Monument.
I don't hear anyone speaking.
MS. PORTER: And I don't either.
Luanette, are you on the call?
MS. PITTENGER: For any of the Navy
people, if you are dialed in and trying to speak, if
you've been muted by the system you may need to dial
star 6 on your phone pad to unmute yourself.
MS. BECKER: Can you hear me?
MS. PORTER: And Hayley, were you doing
the presentation?
MS. BECKER: Yes. I keep getting muted
and unmuted. I apologize.
MS. PORTER: Okay.
MS. BECKER: Can you hear me now? Okay.
This is Hayley Becker. My address is 7
Burtons Point Road, Portsmouth, Virginia.
Thank you, everyone, for joining us to
review the project, St. Juliens -- I'm the natural
resource manager representing NAVFAC Norfolk Naval
Shipyard -COURT REPORTER: Excuse me. Excuse me.
Excuse me. Excuse. Ms. Porter.
MS. PITTENGER: Hayley, your microphone
is really cutting in and out.
COURT REPORTER: I have been trying to
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interrupt earlier. I cannot understand, especially not
enough to take that down at a verbatim level. I
apologize. I don't know if you need to sit back from
the mic but I really am not hearing that at all.
MS. BECKER: Okay. Is this better at
all?
COURT REPORTER: I think so.
MS. BECKER: The project takes place -where do you want me to pick up at?
COURT REPORTER: Probably -MS. BECKER: The beginning.
COURT REPORTER: Yes. I couldn't hear
all the titles clearly and -MS. BECKER: Okay.
COURT REPORTER: Thank you.
MS. BECKER: No worries.
We have on the line today Luanette
Roman-Lugo, NAVFAC Civilian Engineer, working closely
with Amy McKay, NAVFAC landscape architect, to design
the proposed designs. We also have NAVFAC Civil
Engineering Technical Discipline Supervisor Deborah
Brewster, NAVFAC Community Planner Aaron Clarke and
NAVFAC Facility Planner Marge Winemiller.
The project takes place on Department of
Navy's St. Juliens Creek Annex south of the Jordan
Bridge on the east side of the perimeter. Paradise
Creek is just north and St. Juliens Creek is just south
of Blows Creek.
The primary purpose of this project is to
replace the damaged perimeter security fence including
the water crossing at Blows Creek. The fence is in
poor condition and nonoperational which has compromised
Navy perimeter security. The shoreline around and
under the fence line has extensive erosion, therefore
must be stabilized and improved.
I will now turn the presentation over to
Luanette Roman-Lugo, civil engineer, to discuss the
design details. Over.
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: Good afternoon,
everyone. This is Luanette Roman-Lugo. So we should
be on the site location. This is the correct slide I
see on the screen, and I have added two images of our
location for us to use as reference.
In the top left image you can see the
area circled in red is where the project site is
located. And as Hayley mentioned, we are at

24
25

St. Juliens Creek Annex on the east side of the
property adjacent to Water Street at the mouth of Blows
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Creek right where it enters into the Elizabeth River.
The bottom right image is a closeup of our site.
This project will be divided into two
phases: Phase 1, which is the one we will be
discussing today, which consists of a perimeter fence
repair and shoreline stabilization; and Phase 2, which
will be constructed later and will consist of replacing
the existing bridge.
All right. We can move on to our next
slide.
So in here we have our existing
conditions plan. As you can see, we have Blows Creek
on the top which empties into the middle branch of the
Elizabeth River.
I still see the site location slide on my
screen. Are you guying on the existing conditions
slides on your side?
MS. PITTENGER: I moved forward but it
didn't -- there it goes. Sorry.
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: Yeah. Okay. So I'll
start over.
So in here we have our existing
conditions plan. As you can see, we have Blows Creek
on top which empties right into the Elizabeth River.
We can only have our perimeter fence at the mouth of
Blows Creek running parallel to the Elizabeth River.
This fence is no longer operational, and it's in
terrible condition.
In here we can see the existing fence is
the light gray outlined fence with the dashed lines.
This fence, though will be replaced, is approximately
173 feet long and will be replaced with a new fence in
the same exact location.
In order to secure the perimeter and
maintain the security in the site while the old fence
is being demoed, we will add a temporary fence east of
the existing fence. You can see in this sheet the
temporary fence is the darker outlined fence, and it
will be offset 5 feet east from the existing fence.
This temporary fence will remain in place until the
completion of the project and will meet the standards
of 10 feet spacing, 8 to 12 feet high and have 3-strand
barbed wire.
We also have broken concrete slabs which
are outlined in light brown. That will be removed and
replaced with riprap. The slabs are currently sitting
on top of a concrete seawall in some areas. And as you
get closer to the bridge, they're sitting on top of the
timber seawall that extends underneath the bridge.
ZAHN COURT REPORTING

8
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Now I will be showing you images of
existing conditions in the next few slides.
Lastly, we have our existing wooden
bridge outlined in dark brown and adjacent to the
perimeter fence. This bridge, which is no longer
working and in very poor condition, will again be part
of Phase 2 of the project.
All right. Now moving on to our next
slide.
So in this picture, as you can see,
pretty much the condition of our site. In the top left
and top right images you can see the existing fence and
how it has corroded over time.
In the top left and bottom right you can
also see the water barricade in the water crossing
which is broken and has left the area completely
exposed.
You can also see in the top left that as
the tide comes in, this area is completely submerged
under water. And as the tide rolls out, the area has
become eroded over time which resulted in the loss of
sediment.
And also, in the top left picture you can
see we currently have some timber piles in the water
crossing that will be replaced with new timber piles
that will run the height of the fence.
Moving on to our next slide, we have a
few more pictures on our next slide.
MS. MONUMENT: This is Jennifer Monument.
The next slide appears to be on our screen. Is there
just a lag?
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: Okay. Yeah. I think
there is a lag on my side. Okay. Let me just keep
going.
So we can see in here the existing bridge
on the top left and bottom left pictures. This bridge
is in disrepair, and it's not very stable. We can walk
on it, but it's definitely not the most stable bridge.
And from looking at all the pictures we
can see the condition of the concrete slabs that will
be removed. In the top right picture the slabs run
perpendicular to the Elizabeth River and are sitting on
top of a concrete seawall. And as you get closer to
the bridge, the slabs are sitting on top of a timber
seawall that goes under the bridge.
Moving on to our next slide, so in here
we have our site plan. The darker outlined fence is
the new fence, and the light gray is the temporary
fence. Our new chain-link fence will range from 8 to
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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12 feet high, have 10 feet spacing between each post.
And in the water crossing portion, which I will show
you in the next slide, we will have timber piles, which
is the same piles we have now but this ones will be
longer and will keep the fence above the high tide and
the barricade at the bottom.
We have also added two gates on each side
of the fence which will be secured and locked, and the
purpose of them is that so we can access the water
crossing barricade and clean the debris.
The light gray shaded area, which is
where the concrete slabs that will be removed are, will
be replaced with riprap in the same exact location on
both sides. This riprap will be a 50/50 mix of Class I
and Class II riprap. Class I ranges from 50 to
150 pounds, and Class II ranges from 150 to 500 pounds.
Also, you can see we have two shaded
areas in green, and this will be the largest
improvement of our site. Currently, as the Elizabeth
River rises, the tides come in and roll out and it
takes a lot of erosion. So we will be planting and
seeding to stabilize the area. We will also add a
liner against the existing concrete seawall that's
shaded light brown and runs parallel to the Elizabeth
River. This liner will help mitigate the flow of water
that comes in through the crevices of the wall. And
Amy, our landscape architect, will go over all of this
in more detail on the last slide.
I have also outlined the new bridge
foundation which will have approximately the
non-vegetated impact of 1,400 square feet.
Now, moving on to our next slide, here we
have a profile view of the water crossing. We have a
total of seven timber piles that will be pile driven
and run the height of the fence.
Right below the fence we have a barricade
which as you can see we have outlined in brown. The
barricade will be submerged under water and have a
stainless steel super duplex coating to prevent
corrosion. Each square of the opening will range
between 6-by-9 inches and 9-by-9 inches depending on
geometry.
There are two areas in our slide where
the fence has a 12-inch opening between the ground
level and the bottom of the fence. One of these areas
is on the north side of the site on Highland, and the
other area is just south of the water crossing. In
order to keep the area secure, we will add a 3/8-inch
diameter rebars which are outlined in here on the left
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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side in a darker brown. These bars will have the same
super duplex coating as the barricades.
Now moving on to our next slide, this
should be our bridge, which is Phase 2, and I'll talk
briefly about this slide.
This is our bridge concept. Again, it
will be constructed during Phase 2 of our project. The
existing bridge has four vents located below the
bridge, and this new bridge concept will have three
vents which will be the only impact.
As you can see on the top profile view we
have our three foundations: One in the middle, one on
the left and one on the far right. We also have our
existing concrete seawalls on each side of the middle
vent and the riprap that extends all the way to the
bridge approach on both sides. This new bridge will
stand approximately 71 feet.
Now Amy, our landscape architect, is
going to take over and talk about our landscape plan.
MS. MCKAY: Good afternoon. My name is
Amy McKay. I reside at 125 Pudding Ridge Road in South
Mills, North Carolina, and I'm the project landscape
architect working alongside the civil and the
environmental teams.
Let me make sure everybody is on slide 9,
bioengineering materials.
Our shoreline stabilization plan is a
hybrid design. It includes the establishment of new
plant material supported by imported soils and
bioengineered hardscape materials.
To begin, please direct your attention to
the detail on the lower right corner of this slide.
We have detailed a section of the
existing vertical concrete pillar wall to illustrate
the addition of geotextile materials. Our primary
objectives are to enhance the viability and stability
of the existing shoreline starting with the addition of
4 inches of granular sandy planting medium and
compositionally balanced top soil to raise the grade to
12 inches below the top of the existing wall.
In an effort to minimize future scouring
and loss of this new soil, we will install a reinforced
polypropylene liner along the inner concrete wall face.
You can see that outlined. It looks like an L. We
will also secure double-stacked 12-inch diameter
coconut coir logs to further assist in retaining the
new soil which will support the establishment of the
wetland material.
Slide 10, please, is the planting plan.
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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The illustration of the planting plan
depicts a layout of our selected native plant species.
This includes Spartina alterniflora and Spartina
patens. Both will be planted as 4-inch plugs in a
12-inch spacing triangular pattern. Planted between
mean low tide and mean high tide will be Spartina
alterniflora. Refer to the label SA shown in the
rendering. Between the mean high tide line and a
jurisdictional wetland limit will be Spartina patens
labeled SP. This new plug planting will cohesively
knit into the existing plant community.
All plugs will be temporarily protected
with bird netting for the duration of NAVFAC's standard
365-day warranty and establishment period, and upon the
successful establishment of the wetland the netting
will be then removed. In total, 4,245 native plugs
will be installed during the recommended planting
season windows in either the spring or the autumn
depending upon the completion of the civil hardscape.
In the jurisdictional line and the
existing asphalt walk will be Bermuda seed supported by
biodegradable stabilization matting. This turf area
will be maintained at a height not to exceed 8 inches
to ensure clear site line per installation
requirements.
Move to slide 11, please.
The slide 11 shows the impact
calculations. The total area disturbed within the
limits of the overall project is approximately 8,205
square feet as highlighted below, but please note that
the area of impact within the jurisdictional wetlands
is less at approximately 6,280 square feet. This 6,280
square foot total combines the new riprap, the fence
posts, timber pilings, the new water barrier and 3,670
square feet of restoration conversion planting.
Combined, these elements comprise our Phase 1. Phase 2
includes 1,460 square feet of bridge foundation.
The design we permitted today achieves
both the goal of shoreline restoration and the repair
of this segment of St. Juliens Creek Annex's secured
perimeter in compliance with the Department of
Defense's current anti-terrorism force protection
requirements.
Slide 12 would give our group a moment to
ask questions, and at this point the design team is
available for any questions or necessary
clarifications. We certainly appreciate your time and
consideration of this proposed unique living shoreline
project. Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN SMITH: Board members, I will
now call each of your names and provide the opportunity
for questions and/or comments for the project agent on
either item VMRC 20-0699.
So this is Don Smith. The timber pieces
that you're talking about, are they treated -- what are
they treated with? I mean, do they have a lifespan
that's longer -- I mean, why would you use that
material and not something that won't decay? And
whatever they're treated with, does that cause any kind
of a problem chemically for the wetlands?
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: Can you hear me?
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Yes.
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: So we decided to use
timber piles just because we needed something sturdy
that will not be corroded due to the water and whatnot.
They're not treated. They're just 3/8-inch diameter
timber pilings that will run the length of the water
crossing just to keep the area secured. And it's
pretty much what we have there right now, just once
again, it will run the height of the fence.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: What kind of a lifespan
do you expect out of those timber piles?
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: I would say -- can you
guys hear me?
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Yes.
MS. ROMAN-LUGO: I will say over 50 years
or 25 to 50 years.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay. Very good.
All right. And other members, I'm going
to go ahead and call you.
Jennifer Monument, any questions?
MS. MONUMENT: No. My only comment is
that I'm very impressed with the detail that has been
presented for the plantings, and I think it's
100 percent better than what's there currently.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Patrick Goold, any comments or questions?
MR. GOOLD: No questions. I also think
that was an excellent presentation. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION: I have no questions. I think
the presentation was right on time.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: Yes. I'd like to first
start off and say I think that there's a lot of detail
lacking from the drawings. We don't have any
cross-sections that show new work relative to the
existing work. We don't show any grades where the
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wetlands is being planted. We don't show any access
for the equipment. We don't show any details of the
riprap other than a generic section that doesn't
identify the slope, the tow or the elevations.
Would anyone like to address that for the
Navy?
MS. MCKAY: This is Amy McKay. Can
everybody hear me?
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Yes.
MS. MCKAY: Okay. Just to be clear, this
is a graphic presentation of the project. We actually
have a far more complex set of construction drawings
that are nearing final, I mean, fine-tooth comb final.
If -- and Deb Brewster, please correct me if I'm
wrong -- if that's required to get approval from this
board, that can be provided.
MS. BREWSTER: This is Deb Brewster.
Address, 5704 Aura Drive, Virginia Beach, Virginia. I
am the civil engineering supervisor, and that was a
great comment on Rich's part.
We did submit our engineered drawings to
the board. They're about 20 to 25 pages of all of
those details that are needed in order to construct
this project. Stacy, I'm sure, has a copy of those
plans electronically, and we'd be glad to provide
supporting paper product as well if that would please
the board, but we did go into extensive detail on those
plans.
We have the existing conditions plan
which was performed by a survey back about a year ago
that shows all the existing grades. We even got into
the creek and did a hydrographic survey into the creek
and into the Elizabeth River. So we had all the
details.
We also show the site improvements, and
we detail those sections in all of the profiles that
you would be looking at which also transition into the
grading detail which show those transitions in the
grades. Because you're exactly correct. There is a
varying amount of grades. We have transitioning where
we add the riprap. We have the seawall. We have it
off-sited, the timber piles.
And so those are shown in those section's
profiles and grading plans, along with an erosion
control plan, which is extremely important in this
case, as we have taken special measures at the Blows
Creek during the construction phasing.
And then we finalize the plans with about
three or four sheets of landscape plans which you saw
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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the sort of the rolled-up version today in the
rendering.
So those 20 to 25 sheets, engineered
drawings, have been submitted, but we'd be glad to
entertain any questions with regard to specific
details. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: So this 11-by-17 paper
we got in our packet, is this the plans, the detail
plans you're talking about?
MS. BREWSTER: Correct. Deb Brewster
again. I would have to lean on Stacy, but I'm
anticipating, if it is voluminous with about 20 to 25
sheets of 11-by-17 pages, that would be the engineered
drawings. Over.
MS. PORTER: Mr. Chairman, I didn't want
to be out of order. It's Stacy.
So I believe what we needed was what I
did distribute to our board members. It's about -yeah. It's about 20 -- I don't know how many pages
exactly, but yes, the very plans that you described,
they do have them. Absolutely. They do have those.
MR. CALVERT: Thoroughly lacking in
detail.
MS. BECKER: This is Hayley Becker. I
can re-send those DOD. It's a very large file, if
that's needed. I can send that here in a few minutes.
MR. CALVERT: Yeah. I understand that we
can get some more drawings, but we're supposed to be
reviewing what's before us today. And I have kind of a
hard time. I just don't understand what you're doing
because it's not complete to me. I can't put the whole
project together and see all the details that I feel
are necessary.
MS. BREWSTER: This is Deborah Brewster,
civil engineering supervisor. Those drawings are with
Stacy, and so feel free to post them up and we'd be
glad to go over all of the content. We're here for the
board's -- you know, to answer those questions.
MR. CALVERT: So you think the drawings
we have is a complete set of drawings for construction?
MS. BREWSTER: The drawings that Stacy
has. I'm not sure exactly what was submitted to the
board. Over.
MS. PORTER: Right. I have what was
submitted October the 9th. It has several sheets. I
have not counted them, but it does show existing
conditions, demolition plans, site plan, grading
plan -- I'm just skipping around -- erosion and
sediment control plan, planting detail. Does that
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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sound familiar? Because that's all I have. I don't
have anything else.
MS. BREWSTER: That would be the
construction set, correct. I think what's being asked
is was the full construction set submitted to the board
members. Over.
MS. PORTER: Okay. This is what I -CHAIRMAN SMITH: Stacy.
MS. PORTER: Yes, sir.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: This packet is 13
sheets.
MS. PORTER: 13 sheets.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Of 11-by-17.
MR. CALVERT: With two sides, so it's 26
pages.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Pages, yes. 13 sheets,
26 pages.
MS. PORTER: So this is what I was given.
I don't have any additional information. I gave
you-all what I was given.
MR. CALVERT: So can you tell me what
drawing has the cross-section on the construction
drawing so I can see it on my drawing?
MS. BREWSTER: Copy that. If you were to
go to CF-503, CF-503.
MR. CALVERT: Okay.
MS. BREWSTER: That is a cross-section of
the water crossing. It's a cross-section profile.
It's -MR. CALVERT: At two different scales.
MS. BREWSTER: -- exactly where you'd
like the cross-section.
MR. CALVERT: I would like the
cross-section for the wetlands planting area, which
there are none. I would like to see a section through
the riprap and the grades and the elevations and the
slope. I don't think that's too demanding.
The only riprap detail on these drawings
is on CG-500. And it doesn't show the tow. It doesn't
show the depth of the section, and it doesn't show it
as it relates to the existing site conditions. It's a
very generic detail.
MS. BREWSTER: Okay. Copy that.
We did provide the cross-section at the
area, the specific area of the fence.
With regard to more of a cross-section -could I get some clarification on where you would like
those?
As you can see on CF-503, as you can see
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in the heavy dashed lines at the bottom, it's the -- is
the existing ground. And if you're starting from the
left side of the sheet and you move to the right,
looking at the existing ground, and then it drops
vertically. And that's where the seawall is, if you
will. And then it moves on negatively graded to about
a minus 3 elevation which is actually the basin bottom
of Blows Creek. And then it -- the size is vertically,
which is the seawall on the north side. And then you
can see -MR. CALVERT: I would like that you show
me the details than describe it to me, ma'am. I'm
having a hard time following you on a detail that's
drawn at two different scales.
I would like to see a cross-section
through the entire wetlands planting area showing the
existing wall, showing grades, showing the different
plantings at the different elevations and showing the
predator fencing. I would like to see a section
through the riprap. I think that's fair so that we can
determine if we believe that it's being installed
appropriate.
MS. BREWSTER: Copy that. We'll be glad
to do that. We'll be glad to do that. We just need to
get clarification. At this point, if it satisfies the
board, we can do a cross-section through the wetlands
on the south side, so that would include from the
Elizabeth River looking into the installation. And
then we can do similar on the north side, so through
the existing seawall, through the new living marsh and
through the new segment of fence. And then we can
rotate those cross-sections, and we can add a few
cross-sections in and around near the bridge.
Would that satisfy the board? Over.
MR. CALVERT: Yeah, but I -- I don't know
that I would be happy doing it contingent upon those
drawings being provided to us at a later date. I see
what you would like to do. How about -MS. BREWSTER: I'm sorry. You were -MR. CALVERT: Are you -COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry, Mr. Calvert.
I did not hear that. "Permit Phase 2," I didn't
understand.
MR. CALVERT: Are you going to get a
separate permit for the work in Phase 2, or is that
beyond the board's jurisdiction? More specifically
the foundations for the new pier, bridge.
MS. BREWSTER: Copy that. This is Deb
Brewster.
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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We're looking to achieve one permit that
would just be built in two contracts. The one contract
would focus on the fencing and the living marsh and is
pretty time sensitive to have successful installation
of the vegetation, and then the second contract for the
Navy would focus on the bridge. So we have two
different vehicles. So I don't want it to be confused
with as Phase 1/Phase 2. We're really looking at
executing the work with two different contracts, but we
are looking to take one permit for the non-vegetated
conversion. Over.
MR. CALVERT: Roger.
Do the new foundations for the new bridge
impact wetlands? Putting them -MS. BREWSTER: I apologize. Yes.
MS. PORTER: I'm sorry. This is Stacy
again. Yes, the foundation, it would impact
nonvegetated wetlands. So yes, it would still be in
your jurisdiction.
MR. CALVERT: So we don't have any
information on the impacts of that either.
MS. PORTER: No. We do. We have an
impact table they provided for us. It sounds like you
just want more details, more plans. Is that what
you're asking, for the riprap plan details? Is that
correct?
MR. CALVERT: I would like to see a
resubmittal. I don't want to delay the project, but I
think that there's a lot of miscellaneous details that
need to be included for us to give an appropriate
decision on approval or denial. That's all. I just
think there's more detail that would help us make a
better decision.
MS. PORTER: Okay.
MR. CALVERT: Other board members'
comments?
MS. MONUMENT: This is Jennifer. I would
like to go back to the slide that had the detail about
the vegetation on it, if we could, Stacy.
I am trying to understand exactly the
concern here about the riprap and what specifically,
Rich, you're looking for. Are you looking for more of
a cross-section drawing?
MR. CALVERT: Yes, I am.
MS. MONUMENT: Because I'm looking on
this slide and I'm looking -- I don't know if it's

24
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possible to zoom in on the cross-section drawing that's
on here so that we can take a look at that.
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MS. PITTENGER: Hold on.
MS. MONUMENT: So specifically, Rich,
you're looking for -- you know, this is just basically
an artist's rendering. And what you're saying is -MR. CALVERT: Correct.
MS. MONUMENT: -- you want to see exact,
like, foot/inch measurements of how deep this goes and
what the size of the riprap is, correct?
MR. CALVERT: Yes.
MS. MONUMENT: Okay. I'm just trying to
understand the concern here of what level of detail
would make you comfortable with a vote because for me
it seems pretty comprehensive. And I often rely on
Stacy for, you know, additional review of any
additional materials. Stacy, sorry about that, but I
do.
MS. PORTER: Right.
MS. MONUMENT: So I would be interested
to let everyone else have a comment period. And then,
Stacy, if we could get your thoughts on the project and
if you've walked the project, what your recommendation
might be for the board.
So for me, I understand Rich's concerns
because we don't have specific drawings to scale,
perhaps, or we're missing that detail information on
these cross-section drawings. But if you've walked the
project and if you have any extemporaneous knowledge of
it that you could share with us, I would be interested
in that.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: So if I could, keeping
us on track, Rich has really asked some really good
questions, and Jennifer is asking for information from
staff, and we're getting to that, but I have one more
member that may ask questions from the agent.
And, Ellen, any questions? Ellen
Comstock, this is your time.
MS. PORTER: Do you need to unmute
yourself, Ellen?
MS. COMSTOCK: I can unmute myself now
that I'm away from another phone that's ringing.
I don't have any other questions other
than what Rich has raised in that I don't -- I would
like to see some more numbers. And I am understanding
that they're not there, but I don't have anything in
addition that I would want to bring up.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
If there are no more questions, we will
proceed. Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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As staff liaison to the Wetlands Board,
I'll provide my staff recommendation at this time. And
I will go ahead and just comment, I do want to make
sure that you-all know that I work, you know, I work at
the pleasure of the board. I'm here to work with you
all. I do know that this project has been delayed a
little bit. We have had a couple of site visits with
VMRC to make some project revisions, and I and VMRC
staff felt the final revision was perfect. However, I
do understand where the board members are coming from.
This is a question -- and I want to ask
the Navy staff if you are amenable to this and also ask
the board as well. Sometimes this is how we do it for
planning commission. When there are -- rather than
having things come back to the board or commission,
sometimes staff does a review. I don't know how
comfortable you-all feel with that because it sounds
like you may not be comfortable. Would you all like
them to provide more details, more numbers specific to
this particular project on these plans and have them
come through me, or would you like to actually have it
come back to you? I guess that's my major question.
As far as me feeling comfortable, I feel
very, very comfortable. Because I look at the scope of
the project has been greatly reduced, by two-thirds.
And I did talk about that in the staff report, that the
original amount of riprap, I mean, it was massive and
they have greatly reduced that amount. Also, they have
focused on creating as much of a living shoreline as
they could by doing the wetland conversion.
I guess my question is for, first, the
board, how comfortable you-all feel with me receiving
drawings and doing an administrative look at it? But
certainly it can come back to you. So I guess that
that's kind of throwing it back a little bit to the
chairman, if you didn't mind facilitating that
discussion, how comfortable the board felt with staff
looking at the drawings.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay. Well, staff has
recommended for approval. This is Don Smith. I got to
tell you. The plans that we've got were way over my
head, and I thought everything looked really top notch.
And Rich, he's a valuable asset. He brought up some
stuff I had no idea to even think about. So the
question might be is, is this something that we would
delay, table, bring back on another meeting, or are the
details that Rich has brought up, have they been
addressed by VMRC and part of staff's recommendation to
approve. If VMRC has looked at all the specifics and
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they're happy with them, I'm very pleased with what I
see here in this presentation.
So I'm going to move on to the next board
member and, Jennifer, will you please ask questions of
staff.
MS. MONUMENT: Thank you. This is
Jennifer. I am comfortable with the staff
recommendation. And again, they have had the benefit
of the site visit and the benefit of input from VMRC.
I would prefer not to delay this project or to have it
come back to the board. I feel like if the Navy is
capable of providing the exact inches and dimensions to
staff, I would be comfortable voting on this today.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Patrick Goold, any
questions?
MR. GOOLD: Well, I, too, found the
drawings adequate because I assumed that the details,
like the size of the riprap and appropriate tow and all
that, I just assumed that would be done professionally.
But that -- I now have a question in my mind what is
due diligence in this case. Do we really -- because
Rich is obviously right. It's not there. It's not
anything mysterious or you would expect a contractor
to -- operating at best practice to do those things,
but it's not there.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay. Doug. Doug
Union.
MR. UNION: I'm here. Yeah. I thought
the plans looked pretty good, too, until Rich got in
there. And he's absolutely right. I just went through
this myself. You had to have the slope there, and you
had to have the height and the depth and high and low
tides and where the rock stops and where it starts.
And it's definitely not in that. I think it wouldn't
be a big thing for them to fix, but it's a shady area
whether we vote on this today or not.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: You cut out, Doug, on
the last few -MR. UNION: I said it's a little bit
shady to me, too, because of the details not being
there. Whether it's going to make a difference or not,
of course, the staff has looked at it and VMRC, I can
agree with them, but I can also agree with what Richard
has to say.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Got you. Thank you.
Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: I really don't know what
to say at this point. I just think that the
application is incomplete. I don't want to delay it
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either, but I don't want to set a precedence where we
get a graphic illustration of a project and we don't
get details. And we do have some issues with our
application to imports that are incomplete, so I just
think that we need to be firm.
As far as staff, if VMRC's looking at it,
I guess that would be fine.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: And Ellen, Ellen
Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: Is there -CHAIRMAN SMITH: I'm sorry.
MS. COMSTOCK: I think I'm unmuted now.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: You got it.
MS. COMSTOCK: Is there a possibility for
Rich to provide the questions to Stacy to see that
those -- what he is most concerned about are answered,
and -- from the staff point of view? Would that be a
possibility, that she do the due diligence that he is
requiring so that we could vote on it in with those
addendum, or whatever you call it at that point, or
with that possibility? That wasn't -- didn't come out
very well. Let me -Could Rich provide what he would -- what
he is most concerned about to Stacy and that she get
answers as contingency for our vote?
CHAIRMAN SMITH: So this is Don smith.
Is it possible to vote on this and
perhaps approve it and have this additional information
kind of slid in as an after a fact, after the fact, or
should we table this and bring it back, re-vote on this
when we have all the information?
MS. PORTER: Board members, I want to
make sure that you're comfortable. And I don't mind.
I mean, we can certainly just, with Rich's assistance,
go ahead and provide a list of the missing items and
make sure the Navy staff has that list. And they could
submit a revision and just go ahead and have a December
meeting, and it should be a quick vote at that point.
So that's just my thoughts. I don't want you to feel
uncomfortable.
MR. GOOLD: I would like to see that
course taken. I think tabling it is the thing to do
just because I did assume, because it was the Navy,
that it would all be done up to snuff. But Rich has
really, I think, made an excellent point in that we
don't want to establish a precedent because we are
going to get applications that we want to look at
closely.
MS. PORTER: Okay.
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MR. CALVERT: I guess the question would
be can they turn the drawings around and get it back to
us in time for the next board hearing?
MS. PORTER: That's a great question.
Let me look right here at the calendar because it looks
like that might be really tight. I'll let you know
that by Friday -- excuse me -- Friday, November the
13th, I would need to -- just one second. Let me make
sure I'm getting this correct on the legal ad. Yes.
It would be -- no. Actually, let's see. It would
actually be this Friday -- I'm sorry -- because of how
I have to do the legal advertisement. Because the
December meeting would be December the 2nd, so I have
to do a legal ad very quickly.
So, really, by this Friday, in two days,
they would have to do their amendment of their plans
and it meet our requirements. So -- well, it'll have
to be the January meeting if you all are amenable to
that, so that will be Wednesday, January the 6th.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Stacy, I've got a
question. This is Don Smith. You've got to put in
your legal notice on a particular date, but that
doesn't mean they've got to have all of their revisions
or amendments done by that date, right? Just before
the meeting.
MS. PORTER: Our policy here with the
city staff is anyone that has to be scheduled for a
board or commission meeting, we do not put money out
for legal ads unless you have a complete application.
So unfortunately, I couldn't give the extra time.
That's our policy.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: All right.
MS. PORTER: So it would have to be
January at the earliest, January 6th, I guess -yeah -- meeting. So that's where we are.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: So I want to throw this
out for the board members. This whole repair, this
whole permit, is kind of based on the security of the
Navy base. And it's really not as much about wetlands
or living shoreline; it's about meeting certain
security requirements on the perimeter. And that's
important to me. How does that weigh in on delaying
this another two months?
MS. PORTER: Navy staff, I don't know if
you want to speak to that. Is that something that
would actually not be good for you-all? Since this is
a security project, I didn't know how the delay would
affect you.
MS. BREWSTER: This is Deb Brewster. If
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I may have permission of the Chair to speak? Over.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Please. Yes.
MS. BREWSTER: We're here to support the
board. We can do it in a number of ways. If it
pleases the board to postpone to the 6th of January, we
could get some product in to the board by the end of
November, the first week in December. It is -- it is a
deficit to our posture of our threat right now, so we
are trying to get the project moving.
I would offer -- I'm not sure if it would
be helpful to go back to some of the pictures. You
know, obviously, this board hasn't had the benefit of a
site walk. We also would offer that to the board as
well, you know, with COVID protocols, of course. It
does help to take a look at the project.
But the pictures are in the slides, which
we'd like to ask if the Chair wasn't opposed to go back
to the pictures. And with the pictures, what's
beneficial about the photos is you can see all the
erosion that's taking place, and that is the area that
we're looking at revegetating with the living marsh.
You can also see where the concrete slabs
are that we're proposing that we'd like to remove those
slabs because they're not effective and then just
replace with the riprap. And that can be seen in the
existing photos.
And I just thought I'd offer that and
maybe it's beneficial as a cross-section through those
areas. Over.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Stacy, another concern or another aspect
of this, VMRC has already looked at this and made their
recommendations to approve? Is that right?
MS. PORTER: Yes. Yes, they have. It
wouldn't be -- well, Mike Johnson was on the tail end
of the project, but Rachael Peabody would have been
more involved, but yes. Yes, they have.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: And are they not
expected to raise some of the same questions that Rich
has raised today?
MS. PORTER: Yes. In fact, they're the
first, I guess, the first ones that are going to be
doing the review. In fact, they point out things to me
that are missing. But really, Rachael and I never got
a chance to discuss any of those things that Rich was
talking about. But I didn't get any word back so, I
mean, you know, I certainly thought that we were good.
Honestly I did.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Well, and same here.
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So I'm thinking that with VMRC involved,
and these are Navy professionals and not, you know,
private, just private folks that you maybe have to
watch more carefully or question more intently,
intensely, I'm inclined to vote for approval if we're
not in some -- if we're not concerned about setting a
precedent.
I mean, Patrick's got a good point. I'd
hate to do something here where, you know, a year or
two down the road there's another project and we've set
a precedent where we approve something without the
details that Rich has brought up.
Is there -- do we have legal counsel to
maybe talk a little bit about precedence?
MS. PORTER: Jeff Miller is on the phone.
I don't know if he's still there. He was on the call.
Jeff, are you there? I don't know if -MR. MILLER: I'm here, Stacy. Sorry.
MS. PORTER: You're fine.
MR. MILLER: I had one question before I
get to that. If the board were to defer this matter
and continue the public hearing, would you have to
re-advertise, or could you actually have another
follow-up hearing more quickly than January?
MS. PORTER: That's a great question.
I'm trying to think like we would for planning
commission, how we handle those. Oh, wow.
MS. PITTENGER: Yeah. For planning
commission if we defer, I don't know -- then, yeah, it
doesn't have to get re-advertised if you continue the
public hearing, right?
MS. PORTER: Okay. Yes. That's right.
So you don't close your public hearing. You leave it
open. That's right. Thank you, Meg.
You could do that and then December,
whatever, December the 2nd, perhaps, we'll be ready to
go and we'll have a little bit more time.
MR. CALVERT: Sounds like a win-win.
MS. PORTER: Yes. So November -- but I
would still say because of the holidays that we're
going to be missing some days here in November.
November the 13th, that would be my final deadline for
getting the revision in. And Navy staff, I was just
wondering, is that enough time for you?
MS. BREWSTER: We would like to have more
time just to ensure that we provide the right drawings
that the board is looking for, so we would need that
extra time to get us prepared for a follow-up
submission. Over.
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MS. PORTER: Yes. Yes. And I appreciate
that. So it sounds like we're going back to January
the 6th is what we're looking at.
So we will not close the public hearing
today. And I know, board members, we've never done
that before. But planning commission, we do that. The
board votes, I think, to keep the public hearing open
through January the 6th, 2021. So I think that's
what -- we need a motion for that, but I won't go
further. But that was, you know, I wanted to make that
comment.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Are there any other
comments from the board? Any questions or comments for
staff? Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Okay. And we will now do
our public comment section.
Ladies and gentlemen, we will now begin
the public hearing. Let's see. This is the public
hearing on item VMRC 20-0699. If there is someone
who's on the call who would like to address this
application, you may do so at this time. Press star 6
to unmute your phone. State your name and an address
for the record, and you will be given up to five
minutes to speak.
(Pause)
MS. PORTER: There appears to be no
public on the phone.
Chairman Smith, we will proceed to
requesting board members to provide any other
discussion on the public hearing item.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you, Madam
Secretary.
Is there any more discussion on item VMRC
20-0699? If not, we are in need of a motion and a
second on item VMRC 20-0699. Board members, keep in
mind the staff recommendation for this item. Board
members, before making a motion, please identify
yourself.
I need a motion and a second.
MS. MONUMENT: This is Jennifer Monument.
I'd like to make a motion to approve the permit.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: And do I have a second?
MS. PORTER: This is Stacy. Don, it
looks like that motion has failed. They'll have to
make another motion.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Can I have another
motion and a second?
MR. GOOLD: This is Patrick Goold. I
would move that we defer action on this application
ZAHN COURT REPORTING
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and keep the public meeting open until the next
available slot. I think she said January 6th.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: So Patrick says to
continue, recommends to continue, and I need a second.
MS. COMSTOCK: This is Ellen Comstock,
and I would second that motion.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Board members, as I call
your name, please reply with a verbal response vote.
Don Smith.
Yes. I vote yes to continue.
Jennifer Monument.
MS. MONUMENT: I vote no.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Item VMRC 20-0699 was
continued by a vote of five to one.
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New Business, Madam

Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Thank you. And board
members, we will now proceed on to new business. We
have no applications ready at this time, but we are
anticipating a January 6, 2021, meeting. And as just
discussed, I will get with Rich Calvert, and we will
compose that list of needed items to revise, to have
the Navy revise their plans. And I will receive their
plans and distribute those to all of you, but I have no
further updates.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Board members, is there any further
business?
Board members, as I call your name,
please reply with a verbal response.
Don Smith. I've got no further business.
Jennifer Monument.
MS. MONUMENT: I have no further
business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: No further business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION: No further business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: No further business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: No further business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: With no more agenda
items and no further discussion, board members, this
meeting is now adjourned. Thank you.
MS. PORTER: Thank you, Everyone. Thank
you, Navy staff. We appreciate you.
(Hearing adjourned at 4:55 p.m.)
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA AT LARGE, to wit:

2

I, Olga Branum, RPR, Notary Public and eNotary

3

for the Commonwealth of Virginia at Large, of

4

qualification in the Circuit Court of the City of

5

Norfolk, Virginia, and whose commission expires

6

September 30, 2024, do hereby certify that this

7

proceeding was recorded in Stenotype by me and reduced

8

to computer printout under my direction; and that the

9

foregoing constitutes a true, accurate and complete

10

transcript of such proceeding.

11

I further certify that I am not related to nor

12

otherwise associated with any counsel or party to this

13

proceeding, nor otherwise interested in the event

14

thereof.
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Given under my hand and notarial seal this
18th day of November, 2020 at Norfolk, Virginia.
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___________________________________
Olga Branum, RPR
Notary Registration No.: 180745
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